Association of Florida Colleges Campus Safety Commission By-Laws

ARTICLE I: NAME

The name of this organization shall be The Campus Safety Commission of the Association of Florida Colleges.

ARTICLE II: PURPOSE

The purpose of this organization is to bring in all aspects of campus safety to improve services, educate our communities, and mentor those tasked with providing these various safety components.

ARTICLE III: MEMBERSHIP

Members of the Campus Safety Commission shall consist of the elected members from Florida's public community and state colleges. Current membership in the AFC shall be a prerequisite to membership in the Campus Safety Commission. Each College shall elect two voting Representatives to the Campus Safety Commission. In the absence of a voting Campus Safety Commission Member, an Alternative Member from the same college or campus may be designated as a voting member.

ARTICLE IV: MEETINGS

- 1. There will be at least two (2) business meetings of the Campus Safety Commission each year: one Annual Business Meeting conducted during the AFC Conference, and one during the Campus Safety Symposium.
- 2. The Chair may call additional business meetings for planning purposes, or as necessary.
- 3. All elected Campus Safety Commission voting Representatives present at any business meeting shall constitute a quorum and each member present shall have one vote. A simple majority of those members present and voting shall act on any business brought before the membership by the Commission's Executive Board.
- 4. The Commission's Executive Board shall meet as deemed necessary by the Chair or upon request by any member of the Commission's Executive Board. The Executive Board shall develop the agenda for the Commission's Annual Business Meeting, giving priority in terms of time, items of major or universal interest, motions, or resolutions from studies, work of subcommittees, etc.

ARTICLE V: Officers

The Campus Safety Commission Executive Board shall consist of the following officers:

- A. Elected Officers
 - 1. Chair
 - 2. Chair-elect
 - 3. Five (5) Regional Representatives

B. Election of Officers

- 1. Each year at the annual AFC Conference, a Chair-Elect shall be elected to serve for a term of one (1) year. The Chair-Elect shall automatically succeed the Chair at the end of his/her term and serve as Chair for a period of one (1) year.
- 2. Each year at the annual AFC Conference, Regional Representatives shall be elected to serve for a period of one (1) year. One regional Representative shall be elected from each.
- 3. Prior to the annual AFC Conference, the Chair shall appoint a Nominating Committee chaired by the Immediate Past Chair to present a slate of officers to the Commission's membership at the Annual Conference during the business meeting.
- 4. The offices of the Campus Safety Commission may be filled by a Commission Member who is an individual member in good standing of the AFC for at least six months – one year.

C. Appointed Officers

The following Officers may be appointed by the Chair:

- 1. Treasurer
- 2. Secretary
- 3. Best Practices Award Chair
- 4. Other Officers as designated by the current Chair

D. Duties of Officers

- 1. Commission Chair shall:
 - a. Preside at all Commission Executive Board Meetings.
 - b. Preside at all business meetings.
 - c. Represent the Commission on the AFC Board of Directors.
 - d. Represent the Commission in all matters concerning the Commission.
 - e. Notify the Officers and College Representatives of meetings and shall publish an agenda.
 - f. Designate Ad hoc Committees and appoint individual members to perform such tasks as deemed necessary.
 - g. Shall appoint a Nominating Committee of not less than three members. The committee shall present a slate of nominees for the offices of Chair-Elect., and five (5) Region Representatives. Nominations from the floor will not be accepted at the Commission's Annual Business Meeting.
 - h. Maintain a file of Campus Safety Commission minutes, Ad hoc Committee reports, approved resolutions and recommendations. This file will be transferred to the newly elected Chair at the Commission's Annual Business Meeting.
 - i. Shall insure the activities of the Commission are properly organized and publicized to the membership in advance and results reported to the membership through the use of current and such other vehicles as are, or they may become, available
 - j. Welcomes all new members to the Campus Safety Commission.
- 2. Chair Elect shall:
 - a. Preside over meetings when the Chair is absent or incapacitated.
 - b. Succeed as Chair in the event the Chair resigns or is otherwise unable to continue to

perform the duties of the office.

- c. Coordinate with Commission Chair the Campus Safety Symposium for the following year.
- d. Review Bylaws annually before the Annual Business Meeting.
- e. Act as parliamentarian for the Commission.
- f. Attend and vote at all Executive Board meetings.
- 3. Immediate Past-Chair shall:
 - a. Chair the Nominating Committee for the elected officer for the following year.
 - b. Serve as an advisor for the Chair.
 - c. Coordinate sponsor relations for the Campus Safety Symposium.
 - d. Assume duties of Chair and/or Chair-Elect if they are incapacitated or unavailable.
 - e. Attend and vote at all Commission Executive Board meetings.
- 4. Regional Representatives shall:
 - a. Represent his/her respective Regions in all regional matters concerning the Colleges.
 - b. Recruit new members to the Campus Safety Commission.
 - c. Be responsible for updating the list of Campus Safety Commission members in their Region.
 - d. Communicate with Region members.
 - e. Assist the Immediate Past-Chair and Chair-Elect in disseminating information, promoting and soliciting nominations for the Campus Safety Commission recognition awards.
 - f. Attend and vote at all Commission Executive Board meetings.
- 5. Treasurer shall:
 - a. Safeguard and disburse Commission funds as necessary and as authorized by the Commission Chair and/or Executive Board
 - b. Manage all money accumulated by or expended by the Commission as appropriate with general finance practices
 - c. Prepare financial reports as directed by the Commission Chair and/or the Executive Board
 - d. Prepare an end-of-the-year accounting report to include the Commission's financial activities and end-of-year balance
 - e. Attend and vote at all Commission Executive Board meetings
- 6. Secretary shall:
 - a. Record and publish minutes of all meetings of the Commission and Executive Board.
 - b. Conduct other Commission business as assigned by the Chair.
 - c. Attend and vote at all Commission Executive Board meetings.
- 7. Best Practices Award Chair shall:
 - a. Coordinate the Best Practices Awards process in accordance with the award procedures.
 - b. Review, recommend and implement changes to the award procedures to the Commission's Executive Board.

- c. Create a ballot for member voting to determine 1st, 2nd, and 3rd place for Best Practices Awards.
- d Distribute and collect ballots from the voting members.
- e. Submit all completed ballots to Chair and Secretary for record.
- f. Represent the Best Practices Award committee on the Commission's Executive Board.
- g. Attend and vote at all Commission Executive Board meetings.
- 8. Other Officers shall: perform special assignments/projects as assigned by the Chair.
- 9. Vacancies:

When a vacancy occurs, the Commission's Executive Board shall fill the vacant office by appointment until the next election is held.

ARTICLE VI: COMMISSION EXECUTIVE BOARD

The Commission Executive Board shall be composed of the Commission Chair, Chair-Elect, Immediate Past-Chair, Best Practices Award Chair, Treasurer, and Secretary.

The Commission's Executive Board shall:

- a. Select the site of the Campus Safety Symposium
- b. Plan the Campus Safety Symposium with the AFC State Executive Board
- c. Plan the programs to be presented at the Annual AFC Conference related to Campus Safety
- d. Encourage the various colleges to participate in the Annual Best Practices Awards program as described in the procedure
- e. Fill, by simple majority vote of those in attendance, any vacancies which may occur on the Commission's Executive Board due to resignation, illness, or any other reason causing the vacancy
- f. Determine the recipient(s) of any special recognition award to be given

ARTICLE VII: PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

All Campus Safety Commission Business and Commission Executive Board Meetings shall follow the rules in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order. Newly revised editions shall govern the organization in all cases to which they are not inconsistent with these bylaws and any special rule or order that this organization may adopt.

ARTICLE VIII: REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF THE BY-LAWS

- 1. Proposed By-Laws amendment shall be reviewed by the Commission's Executive Board prior to their presentation to the membership for approval.
- 2. A copy of any proposed change(s) shall be presented to the Commission Chair for review by the sponsoring individual and he/she will forward to the Commission's Executive Board for their review and input. The Commission Chair will call a meeting of the Commission

Executive Board no earlier than two (2) weeks after sending it to the Executive Board for their review. The purpose of the meeting is for their input and approval prior to sending the approved By-Laws to the Commission and AFC State Office.

- 3. These By-Laws' may be amended by the membership at any business meeting by a simple majority.
- 4. Such amendments and revisions to the By-Laws shall be effective immediately.

By-Laws adopted 2015 Revised May 18, 2023